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NOW COMES BETH BLOOMER, your Plaintiff in the above-entitled action, by and 

through her counsel, complaining of the Defendants as follows:

1. Your Plaintiff is a female citizen of the State of Rhode Island and Providence 

Plantations who resides in the City of Pawtucket, Providence, in said state.

2. Defendant BECKER COLLEGE is a corporation organized and existing under 

the laws of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts, which operates an educational facility at, 

among other places, 61 Sever Street, Worcester, Massachusetts 01609, in the City of 

Worcester, Worcester County, in said Commonwealth, and which receives federal financial 

assistance and is subject to the personal jurisdiction of the United States and this Honorable 

District Court.

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
DISTRICT OF MASSACHUSETTS

CENTRAL DIVISION

BETH BLOOMER, Plaintiff,

v. : Case Number 4:09-cv-11342 FDS
CLAIM OF JURY TRIAL

BECKER COLLEGE and
EDMUND J. PARO, Defendants.

PLAINTIFF'S SECOND AMENDED COMPLAINT

THE PARTIES TO THE CASE
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3. Defendant EDMUND J. PARO is a citizen of the United States and a citizen of 

the Commonwealth of Massachusetts, who resides at XXXXXXXXXX, Massachusetts  

XXXXXXXX, in Worcester County in said Commonwealth, and who is subject to the 

personal jurisdiction of the United States and this Honorable District Court, and who was, at 

all times material hereto, employed by Defendant BECKER COLLEGE as the coach of its 

all-female Equestrian Team.

4. The Honorable District Court has subject-matter jurisdiction over the action by 

virtue of the provisions of

a. 28 U.S.C. Section 1331, as your Plaintiff seeks relief for violations of 

20 U.S.C. Section 1681 prohibiting sex discrimination in any education program or activity 

receiving federal financial assistance;

b. 28 U.S.C. Section 1332, as complete diversity of citizenship exists 

between your Plaintiff and the Defendants and the matter in controversy exceeds the sum or 

value of seventy-five thousand dollars ($75,000), exclusive of interest and costs;

c. 28 U.S.C. Section 1367, as the state law claims form part of the same 

case or controversy as the federal law claims over which this Court has original jurisdiction.

THE JURISDICTION OF THE COURT
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5. The venue of the action lies with the Central Division of the Honorable District 

Court of the District of Massachusetts pursuant to 28 U.S.C. Section 1391(b) and D. Mass. 

R. 40.1(D)(1)(c) because all of the Defendants reside there.  

6. In or about September 2007, your Plaintiff, then of the age of 19 years, 

enrolled as a tuition- and fee-paying matriculating resident freshman student in the Equine 

Studies program at the Defendant BECKER COLLEGE.

7. Before making the decision to attend Defendant BECKER COLLEGE, your 

Plaintiff became interested in the school because of the reputation of its Equine Studies 

program.

8. Before making the decision to attend Defendant BECKER COLLEGE, your 

Plaintiff reviewed written materials issued by Defendant BECKER COLLEGE about the 

College in general and the Equine Studies program in particular, including the Student 

Handbook and website.

9. Before making the decision to attend Defendant BECKER COLLEGE, your 

Plaintiff toured the campus of the College and met with representatives of Defendant 

BECKER COLLEGE, including Defendant EDMUND J. PARO, who assured her and her 

parents that by choosing Defendant BECKER COLLEGE she would receive a top-notch 

VENUE

FACTUAL ALLEGATIONS
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equestrian education and enjoy the privilege of competing on the well-regarded Equestrian 

Team.

10. By its Title IX statement in the Student Handbook and website, Defendant 

BECKER COLLEGE assured your Plaintiff that she would not experience sex 

discrimination in her studies or in her participation on the Equestrian Team.

11. By its Sexual Assault Policy in the Student Handbook and website, Defendant 

BECKER COLLEGE represented to your Plaintiff that it would not tolerate sexual assaults 

by students, faculty, or staff, and that anyone who engaged in such conduct would be 

disciplined.  

12. By its Guest Policy in the Student Handbook and website, Defendant 

BECKER COLLEGE represented to your Plaintiff that cohabitation in dormitory rooms was 

strictly prohibited, guests were to be admitted only with the approval of roommates, 

overnight guests were prohibited without a pass issued by the College, and dormitory 

residents had a right to be free of intimidation and emotional harm.  

13. Your Plaintiff relied on all statements made by Defendant BECKER 

COLLEGE about the College, including but not limited to those statements concerning the 

Equestrian Studies program, sexual harassment policy, and student life, outlined in 

paragraphs 8 to 12, , in deciding to attend Defendant BECKER COLLEGE which said 

reliance was reasonable and formed, inter alia, the basis of a bargain made between them.

supra
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14. Defendant BECKER COLLEGE, the party making the statements, reasonably 

expected or should have reasonably expected your Plaintiff, the other party, to give and 

understand such statements by their plain meaning and to rely thereon.

15. As part of her course of study, your Plaintiff joined the Equestrian Team, 

which was coached by Defendant EDMUND J. PARO a 67-year-old male.

16. As a member of the Equestrian Team, your Plaintiff was required to participate 

in practice sessions several times per week under the coaching of Defendant EDMUND J. 

PARO.

17. As a member of the Equestrian Team, your Plaintiff had the opportunity to 

participate in equestrian competitions, some of which required overnight stays away from the 

college campus, under the supervision of Defendant EDMUND J. PARO.

18. From the very beginning of the fall 2007 semester and continuing throughout 

the semester, Defendant EDMUND J. PARO frequently laced his instruction to the members 

of the female Equestrian Team with sexual innuendo. For example:

a. In instructing the team members on what type of clothing they should 

wear in competition, he recommended shirts that would allow a spectator a more explicit 

view of their breasts as they rode;

b. In instructing the team members on what type of clothing they should 

wear in competition, he recommended "thong" style underwear, so that spectators could see 

a more explicit view of their buttocks as they rode;
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c. While looking directly at one of the cocaptains of the Equestrian Team, 

second-year student Lori Gendron, and told the group that he would like to see "that girl," 

referring to Ms. Gendron, ride naked, and stated, "[W]ouldn't it be so hot if (all) could ride 

naked."  Your Plaintiff was offended by these remarks and felt uncomfortable with 

Defendant EDMUND J. PARO’s coaching.

19. From the very beginning of the fall 2007 semester and continuing throughout 

the semester, Defendant EDMUND J. PARO frequently touched members of the Equestrian 

Team in an inappropriate, sexually suggestive manner.  For example:

a. In the presence of other team members, he pinched Ms. Gendron and 

others on the buttocks when the regular activities in which they were engaged caused them 

to assume an opportunistic posture such as bending over at the waist to clean in the horse 

barn;

b. He offered "physical therapy" to team members, including your Plaintiff, 

massaging their backs to relieve sore shoulders with horse liniment, placed his hands up the 

front of their shirts, touching their breasts, even though he is not a licensed physical 

therapist;

c. He tried to hold hands with team members, including your Plaintiff.

Your Plaintiff was offended by this behavior and felt uncomfortable with Edmund J. 

Paro's coaching.

20. From the very beginning of the fall 2007 semester and continuing throughout 

the semester, Defendant EDMUND J. PARO frequently took digital photographs of team 
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members in awkward positions, posting some of them on the website Facebook and stating 

"Now I have your butt on my camera."  Your Plaintiff was offended by this behavior and felt 

uncomfortable with Defendant EDMUND J. PARO’s coaching.

21. On information and belief, other members of the Equestrian Team were 

offended by Defendant EDMUND J. PARO’s inappropriate remarks and inappropriate 

touching, since the two co-captains, Laurie Gendron and Caroline Caine, quit the team 

approximately two weeks into the semester.

22. As he continued to make sexually offensive remarks and to touch team 

members in sexually offensive manners, Defendant EDMUND J. PARO also reminded team 

members constantly that he decided who would ride which horse and who would participate 

in competitions and enjoy other benefits of the Equestrian Team.  He showed favoritism, 

giving horses to two team members, Jesse and Mary.

23. On information and belief, in October 2007, a complaint of sexual harassment 

of members of the Equestrian Team by Defendant EDMUND J. PARO was filed with Becker 

College.

24. On November 23, 2007, Becker College issued a written Final Warning to 

Defendant EDMUND J. PARO, apparently in response to the sexual harassment complaint.

25. On information and belief, Defendant EDMUND J. PARO had engaged in 

sexual harassment prior to the 2007 fall semester, since the warning given after the October 

complaint was a final warning and entitled as such.

Case 4:09-cv-11342-FDS   Document 30   Filed 09/03/10   Page 7 of 24
www.ratemyhorsepro.com



6

26. In late September to early October 2007, your Plaintiff developed an 

incompatibility with her assigned dormitory roommate.  The roommate was domineering and 

excluded your Plaintiff from their shared room when the roommate's boyfriend slept over.

27. On October 1, 2007, your Plaintiff slept in her car because her roommate 

barred her from their room.

28. The following morning, your Plaintiff appeared at Equestrian Team practice 

looking disheveled from having slept in her car.  Upon his inquiry, she explained her 

situation to Defendant EDMUND J. PARO, who offered to let her sleep in an extra room in 

his house.

29. Your Plaintiff slept in the extra room at Defendant EDMUND J. PARO’s 

house on several occasions, but it made her uncomfortable because he would drink hard 

liquor in the evenings and then offer it to her, putting the glass to her lips and telling her to 

relax and drink the alcoholic beverage, even though your Plaintiff was not yet of sufficient 

age to be able to drink alcohol legally.

30. On the occasions when he would offer your Plaintiff alcohol, Defendant 

EDMUND J. PARO would tell your Plaintiff that if she wanted to ride in competitions, she 

would have to relax and drink.

31. On the occasions when your Plaintiff slept in the extra room at Defendant 

EDMUND J. PARO’s house, he would try to hold her hand and tell her she needed to trust 

him.  He would touch her thighs and breasts.
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32. Your Plaintiff complained to Dean Gina Zinno on behalf of Becker College 

about the situation with her roommate and was interviewed by Dean Zinno twice. In the 

second interview, she also raised problems she was having with a resident advisor.

33. After the interviews with Dean Zinno, your Plaintiff was interviewed by a male 

member of the staff of Defendant BECKER COLLEGE.  She began to complain about 

Defendant EDMUND J. PARO, but was told that the school was investigating the October 

2007 complaint of sexual harassment and that she could come back later.  There was no 

follow-up by Defendant BECKER COLLEGE.

34. Your Plaintiff also complained about Defendant EDMUND J. PARO to 

another teacher, Mr. Hoar.  Mr. Hoar told her that he understood her problem, but he did 

not have the authority to help her.

35. On or about November 9, 2007, your Plaintiff stayed late at the college 

equestrian facility with the permission of Defendant EDMUND J. PARO, acting in his 

capacity as Equestrian Team coach, after all the other team members had left.  The 

equestrian facility is located several miles from the Becker College campus and is not within 

walking distance. Defendant EDMUND J. PARO promised her that he would return to the 

facility and give her a ride back to her dormitory.  When Defendant EDMUND J. PARO did 

not arrive, your Plaintiff telephoned her father in Pawtucket, Rhode Island, and he offered to 

drive the one and one-half hours to pick her up.  In the meantime, at about 11:30 p.m., 

Defendant EDMUND J. PARO arrived to pick up your Plaintiff.  She then telephoned her 
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father again, who had driven halfway to Worcester, Massachusetts, and he returned to 

Pawtucket.

36. When he arrived, it appeared to your Plaintiff that Defendant EDMUND J. 

PARO was drunk.  He urged her into his car, but did not take her home as he had promised.  

Instead, he drove her to his home.  When they arrived at his home, Defendant EDMUND J. 

PARO gave your Plaintiff alcoholic beverages and encouraged her to drink them, even 

though he knew she was under 21 years old.  He refused to take her home and sexually 

assaulted her, touching her breasts and thighs and holding her hand.

37. On or about November 30, 2007, Defendant EDMUND J. PARO accompanied 

the members of the Equestrian Team, including your Plaintiff, to observe a competition in 

New Jersey.  Two team members, including your Plaintiff, drove their teammates and 

Defendant EDMUND J. PARO to New Jersey.  He rode in your Plaintiff's vehicle.  The trip 

required an overnight stay in a hotel.

38. Although Defendant EDMUND J. PARO had a hotel room separate from 

members of the Equestrian Team, nevertheless by virtue of his authority as coach of the 

team, he forced and coerced your Plaintiff into his hotel room, claiming that she required 

extra supervision because he had heard she had been cutting herself.  In the hotel room, 

Defendant EDMUND J. PARO provided your Plaintiff with alcoholic beverages and 

encouraged her to drink them, even though he knew she was under 21 years old.  He forced 

her onto his hotel bed and touched her breasts and her thighs.
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39. In fact, your Plaintiff had begun to cut herself because she felt stressed by the 

behavior of Defendant EDMUND J. PARO.

40. Your Plaintiff went to complain to Kirsten Garvey on behalf of Defendant 

BECKER COLLEGE about Defendant EDMUND J. PARO, but Ms. Garvey told her to 

make her complaint after the semester break.

41. Defendant EDMUND J. PARO’S verbal and physical sexual harassment of 

your Plaintiff caused her psychic and emotional injury, accompanied by physical symptoms, 

for which she sought professional treatment.

42. During the semester break, Defendant EDMUND J. PARO sent your Plaintiff 

numerous electronic text messages, urging her to return to Defendant BECKER COLLEGE 

and offering her the use of the extra room in his house.

43. As a consequence of the harm that she suffered, your Plaintiff withdrew from 

Defendant BECKER COLLEGE in January 2008.

)

44. Your Plaintiff incorporates paragraphs 1-43 as if fully set forth herein.

45. At all times relevant, Defendant EDMUND J. PARO was acting in his capacity 

as Equestrian Team coach and employee of Defendant BECKER COLLEGE.

COUNT I
AGAINST BECKER COLLEGE

(Violation of 20 U.S.C. Section 1681, Sexual Harassment by 
Hostile Educational Environment
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46. In the eyes of a reasonable person, Defendant EDMUND J. PARO's verbal and 

physical sexual harassment of your Plaintiff was so severe and pervasive that it created an 

intimidating, hostile, and offensive educational environment.

47. This hostile environment interfered with your Plaintiff's educational progress.

48. Defendant BECKER COLLEGE had actual knowledge of the hostile 

environment, was deliberately indifferent to the hostile environment, and took no remedial 

action.

49. Defendant BECKER COLLEGE's failure to remedy the hostile environment 

caused your Plaintiff to withdraw from the college, to suffer physically and emotionally, and 

to lose esteem, future professional options, future earnings, and creative fulfillment in her 

chosen career.

50. Defendant BECKER COLLEGE's conduct was outrageous because of its 

reckless indifference to the rights of others.

WHEREFORE, your Plaintiff demands judgment against Defendant BECKER 

COLLEGE for compensatory damages of five hundred thousand dollars ($500,000), punitive 

damages in a sum sufficient to deter Defendant BECKER COLLEGE from future unlawful 

conduct, a reasonable attorney's fee pursuant to 42 U.S.C. Section 1988(b), and costs and 

interest.  
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)

51. Your Plaintiff incorporates paragraphs 1-50 as if fully set forth herein.

52. At all times relevant, EDMUND J. PARO was acting in his capacity as 

Equestrian Team coach and employee of Defendant BECKER COLLEGE.

53. Defendant EDMUND J. PARO made it clear that your Plaintiff had to submit 

to his verbal and physical sexual assaults or she would not succeed on the Defendant 

BECKER COLLEGE Equestrian Team.

54. As a result of EDMUND J. PARO's verbal and sexual assaults, your Plaintiff's 

performance on the Equestrian Team and in her course work in the Equine Studies program 

suffered.

55. Defendant BECKER COLLEGE had actual knowledge of EDMUND J. 

PARO's sexual harassment of your Plaintiff, was deliberately indifferent to the sexual 

harassment, and took no remedial action.

56. Defendant BECKER COLLEGE's failure to remedy the sexual harassment 

caused your Plaintiff to withdraw from the college, to suffer physically and emotionally, and 

to lose esteem, future professional options, future earnings, and creative fulfillment in her 

chosen career.

WHEREFORE, your Plaintiff demands judgment against Defendant BECKER 

COLLEGE for compensatory damages of five hundred thousand dollars ($500,000), punitive 

damages in a sum sufficient to deter Defendant BECKER COLLEGE from future unlawful 

COUNT II
AGAINST BECKER COLLEGE

(Violation of 20 U.S.C. Section 1681, Quid Pro Quo Sexual Harassment
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conduct, a reasonable attorney's fee pursuant to 42 U.S.C. Section 1988(b), and costs and 

interest.  

)

57. Your Plaintiff incorporates paragraphs 1-56 as if fully set forth herein.

58. At all times relevant, Defendant EDMUND J. PARO was acting in his capacity 

as Equestrian Team coach and employee of Defendant BECKER COLLEGE.

59. In the eyes of a reasonable person, EDMUND J. PARO's verbal and physical 

sexual harassment of your Plaintiff was so severe and pervasive that it created an 

intimidating, hostile, and offensive educational environment.

60. This hostile environment interfered with your Plaintiff's educational progress.

61. Defendant BECKER COLLEGE had actual knowledge of the hostile 

environment,  was deliberately indifferent to the hostile environment, and took no remedial 

action.

62. Defendant BECKER COLLEGE's failure to remedy the hostile environment 

caused your Plaintiff to withdraw from the college, to suffer physically and emotionally, and 

to lose esteem, future professional options, future earnings, and creative fulfillment in her 

chosen career.

63. Defendant BECKER COLLEGE's conduct was outrageous because of evil 

motive and/or its reckless indifference to the rights of others.

COUNT III
AGAINST BECKER COLLEGE

(Violation of M.G.L. c. 151C, Sections 1(e), 2(g), Sexual Harassment 
by Hostile Educational Environment
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WHEREFORE, your Plaintiff demands judgment against Defendant BECKER 

COLLEGE for compensatory damages of five hundred thousand dollars ($500,000), punitive 

damages in a sum sufficient to deter Defendant BECKER COLLEGE from future unlawful 

conduct, a reasonable attorney's fee, and costs and interest.

)

64. Your Plaintiff incorporates paragraphs 1-63 as if fully set forth herein.

65. At all times relevant, Defendant EDMUND J. PARO was acting in his capacity 

as Equestrian Team coach and employee of Defendant BECKER COLLEGE.

66. Defendant EDMUND J. PARO made it clear that your Plaintiff had to submit 

to his verbal and physical sexual assaults or she would not succeed on the Defendant 

BECKER COLLEGE Equestrian Team.

67. As a result of EDMUND J. PARO's verbal and sexual assaults, your Plaintiff's 

performance on the Equestrian Team and in her course work in the Equine Studies program 

suffered.

68. Defendant BECKER COLLEGE had actual knowledge of EDMUND J. 

PARO's sexual harassment of your Plaintiff, was deliberately indifferent to the sexual 

harassment, and took no remedial action.

69. Defendant BECKER COLLEGE's failure to remedy the sexual harassment 

caused your Plaintiff to withdraw from the college, to suffer physically and emotionally, and 

COUNT IV
AGAINST BECKER COLLEGE

(Violation of M.G.L. c. 151C, Sections 1(e), 2(g), Quid Pro Quo Sexual Harassment
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to lose esteem, future professional options, future earnings, and creative fulfillment in her 

chosen career.

70. Defendant BECKER COLLEGE's conduct was outrageous because of evil 

motive and/or its reckless indifference to the rights of others.

WHEREFORE, your Plaintiff demands judgment against Defendant BECKER 

COLLEGE for compensatory damages of five hundred thousand dollars ($500,000), punitive 

damages in a sum sufficient to deter Defendant BECKER COLLEGE from future unlawful 

conduct, a reasonable attorney's fee, and costs and interest.

(previously dismissed as to BECKER COLLEGE by order filed 8/13/10) 
)

71. Your Plaintiff incorporates paragraphs 1-70 as if fully set forth herein.

72. In driving your Plaintiff from the equestrian facility to his house, refusing to 

drive her home, and giving your Plaintiff alcoholic beverages to drink, Defendant EDMUND 

J. PARO committed overt acts to put your Plaintiff in reasonable apprehension of immediate 

bodily harm.

73. In forcing your Plaintiff into his hotel room, providing her with alcoholic 

beverages to drink, and forcing your Plaintiff onto his hotel bed, Defendant EDMUND J. 

PARO committed overt acts to put your Plaintiff in reasonable apprehension of immediate 

bodily harm.

COUNT V
AGAINST EDMUND J. PARO

(Common-Law Assault and Battery
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74. In sexually assaulting your Plaintiff by touching her breasts, hands, and thighs, 

Defendant EDMUND J. PARO engaged in intentional, unpermitted contact with your 

Plaintiff.

75. Defendant EDMUND J. PARO acted intentionally.

76. Defendant EDMUND J. PARO acted within the scope of his employment as 

coach of the Equestrian Team.

77. EDMUND J. PARO's conduct was outrageous because of his evil motive 

and/or his reckless indifference to the rights of others.

78. As his employer, Defendant BECKER COLLEGE is vicariously liable for 

EDMUND J. PARO's intentional torts undertaken within the scope of his employment.

79. As a proximate result of the assault and battery on your Plaintiff, she was 

forced to withdraw from school and she suffered physical and emotional and other 

compensatory damages.

WHEREFORE, your Plaintiff demands judgment against Defendant EDMIUND J. 

PARO for compensatory damages of five hundred thousand dollars ($500,000), punitive 

damages in a sum sufficient to deter him from future unlawful conduct, a reasonable 

attorney's fee, and costs and interest.
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80. Your Plaintiff incorporates paragraphs 1-79 as if fully set forth herein.

81. In driving your Plaintiff from the equestrian facility to his house and refusing to 

drive her home, Defendant EDMUND J. PARO unlawfully restrained your Plaintiff of her 

liberty.

82. In forcing your Plaintiff into his hotel room and forcing her onto his hotel bed, 

Defendant EDMUND J. PARO unlawfully restrained your Plaintiff of her liberty.

83. Defendant EDMUND J. PARO acted intentionally.

84. EDMUND J. PARO's conduct was outrageous because of his evil motive 

and/or his reckless indifference to the rights of others.

85. Defendant EDMUND J. PARO acted within the scope of his employment as 

coach of the Equestrian Team.

86. As his employer, Defendant BECKER COLLEGE is vicariously liable for 

EDMUND J. PARO's intentional torts undertaken within the scope of his employment.

87. As a proximate result of the false imprisonment of your Plaintiff, she was 

forced to withdraw from school and she suffered physical and emotional and other 

compensatory damages.

WHEREFORE, your Plaintiff demands judgment against Defendant BECKER 

COLLEGE and Defendant EDMUND J. PARO, and each of them, for compensatory 

damages of five hundred thousand dollars ($500,000), punitive damages in a sum sufficient 

COUNT VI
AGAINST EDMUND J. PARO AND BECKER COLLEGE

(Common Law False Imprisonment)
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to deter them from future unlawful conduct, a reasonable attorney's fee, and costs and 

interest.

)

88. Your Plaintiff incorporates paragraphs 1-87 as if fully set forth herein.

89. Defendant BECKER COLLEGE owed your Plaintiff a duty to exercise 

reasonable care in the retention of employees with whom she would come in contact during 

her tenure at the college.  

90. Defendant BECKER COLLEGE breached its duty to your Plaintiff when it 

retained Defendant EDMUND J. PARO as coach of the Equestrian Team, even though it 

knew or should have known that Defendant EDMUND J. PARO frequently made 

inappropriate sexual remarks to the members of the team, frequently touched team members 

in an inappropriate manner, had sexually assaulted your Plaintiff, and was otherwise 

unqualified to coach the female Equestrian Team.

91. As a proximate result of the breach of duty to your Plaintiff, she was forced to 

withdraw from school and she suffered physical and emotional and other compensatory 

damages.

92. Defendant BECKER COLLEGE's conduct was outrageous because of evil 

motive and/or reckless indifference to the rights of others.

COUNT VII
AGAINST BECKER COLLEGE

(Negligent Retention
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WHEREFORE, your Plaintiff demands judgment against Defendant BECKER 

COLLEGE for compensatory damages of five hundred thousand dollars ($500,000), punitive 

damages in a sum sufficient to deter Defendant BECKER COLLEGE from future unlawful 

conduct, a reasonable attorney's fee, and costs and interest.

)

93. Your Plaintiff incorporates paragraphs 1-86 as if fully set forth herein.

94. Defendant BECKER COLLEGE owed your Plaintiff a duty to exercise 

reasonable care in the supervision and training of employees with whom she would come in 

contact during her tenure at the college, including EDMUND J. PARO, on the prohibition 

against sexual harassment found in, inter alia, Title IX of the Education Amendments of 

1972, 20 U.S.C. Section 1681(a), and the Fair Educational Practices Act, M.G.L. c. 151C, 

Sections 1(e), 2(g).  

95. Defendant BECKER COLLEGE breached its duty to your Plaintiff by failing 

to adequately train Defendant EDMUND J. PARO on sexual harassment. 

96. Defendant BECKER COLLEGE breached its duty to your Plaintiff by failing 

to adequately instruct Defendant EDMUND J. PARO on sexual harassment after allegedly 

investigating a complaint of sexual harassment against him. 

97. Defendant BECKER COLLEGE's conduct was outrageous because of evil 

motive and/or his reckless indifference to the rights of others.

COUNT VIII
AGAINST BECKER COLLEGE

(Negligent Supervision
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98. As a proximate result of the breach of duty to your Plaintiff, she was forced to 

withdraw from school and she suffered physical and emotional and other compensatory 

damages.

WHEREFORE, your Plaintiff demands judgment against Defendant BECKER 

COLLEGE for compensatory damages of five hundred thousand dollars ($500,000), punitive 

damages in a sum sufficient to deter Defendant BECKER COLLEGE from future unlawful 

conduct, a reasonable attorney's fee, and costs and interest.

99. Your Plaintiff incorporates paragraphs 1-98 as if fully set forth herein.

100. In consideration of $23,315.75 tuition and fees paid in lawful money of the 

United States, Defendant BECKER COLLEGE promised your Plaintiff a college curriculum 

and an academic and social environment free from sexual harassment in violation of Title IX 

of the Education Amendments of 1972, 20 U.S.C. Section 1681(a), and the Fair Educational 

Practices Act, M.G.L. c. 151C, Sections 1(e), 2(g), assault and battery, and false 

imprisonment. 

101. All conditions precedent to the performance of the promise of Defendant 

BECKER COLLEGE have occurred or have otherwise been satisfied.

102. Defendant BECKER COLLEGE breached it promises to your Plaintiff in that, 

as a student, your Plaintiff was subjected to hostile environment and quid pro quo sexual 

COUNT IX
AGAINST BECKER COLLEGE

(Breach of Contract)
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harassment in violation of Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, 20 U.S.C. 

Section 1681(a), and the Fair Educational Practices Act, M.G.L. c. 151C, Sections 1(e), 

2(g), assault and battery, and false imprisonment by the college's employee, EDMUND J. 

PARO, who was charged with providing your Plaintiff with some of the services for which 

she had contracted.

103. As a direct and proximate result of Defendant BECKER COLLEGE's breach of 

contract, your Plaintiff was forced to leave school, interrupt her education, suffered actual 

and consequential damages including lost tuitions and fees paid and did not receive the 

benefit of her bargain.

WHEREFORE, your Plaintiff demands judgment against Defendant BECKER 

COLLEGE for compensatory damages, costs and interest, and such other and further relief 

as the Court deems just and proper.

104. Your Plaintiff incorporates paragraphs 1-103 as if fully set forth herein.

105. In consideration of $23,315.75 tuition and fees paid in lawful money of the 

United States, Defendant BECKER COLLEGE promised your Plaintiff a college curriculum 

and an academic and social environment free from sexual harassment in violation of Title IX 

of the Education Amendments of 1972, 20 U.S.C. Section 1681(a), and the Fair Educational 

COUNT X
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Practices Act, M.G.L. c. 151C, Sections 1(e), 2(g), assault and battery, and false 

imprisonment. 

106. All conditions precedent to the performance of the promises of Defendant 

BECKER COLLEGE have occurred or have otherwise been satisfied.

107. Defendant BECKER COLLEGE breached it promises to your Plaintiff in that, 

as a student, your Plaintiff was subjected to hostile environment and quid pro quo sexual 

harassment in violation of Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, 20 U.S.C. 

Section 1681(a), and the Fair Educational Practices Act, M.G.L. c. 151C, Sections 1(e), 

2(g), assault and battery, and false imprisonment by the college's employee, Defendant 

EDMUND J. PARO, who was charged with providing your Plaintiff with some of the 

services for which she had contracted.

108. As a direct and proximate result of Defendant BECKER COLLEGE's breach of 

contract, your Plaintiff was forced to leave school, interrupt her education, suffered actual 

and consequential damages including lost tuitions and fees paid, did not receive the benefit 

of her bargain and Defendant BECKER COLLEGE was thereby unjustly enriched.

WHEREFORE, your Plaintiff demands judgment against Defendant BECKER 

COLLEGE for compensatory damages, costs and interest, and such other and further relief 

as the Court deems just and proper.

Your Plaintiff,
BETH BLOOMER
By her Attorney,

/s/Douglas A. Pettis                      
Douglas A. Pettis (BBO No. 397340)
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8 Beta Court 
North Providence, RI  02911

dapesquire@cox.net
Telephone:  401-781-7911
Facsimile:  401-633-6146
Attorney for Plaintiff

Your Plaintiff claims her right to trial by jury.

Your Plaintiff,
BETH BLOOMER
By her Attorney,

/s/Douglas A. Pettis                      
Douglas A. Pettis (BBO No. 397340)
8 Beta Court 
North Providence, RI  02911
dapesquire@cox.net
Telephone:  401-781-7911
Facsimile:  401-633-6146
Attorney for Plaintiff

I, the undersigned, do hereby certify that this document was filed through ECF system will be 

sent electronically to the registered participants as identified on the Notice of Electronic Filing (NEF) 

and that a paper copies will be sent to those indicated as non-participants on this date.

/s/Douglas A. Pettis                      

CLAIM OF JURY TRIAL

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE
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